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Technical Questions for Evaluation of Office University Partnership 
(OUP) Programs   
 
 
Questions  
 
           Is the subject RFP may be a Small Business Set-Aside since the size standard is  
           mentioned in the first paragraph of the transmittal letter.  However, the sentence   
           before that states "All offerors are eligible to submit proposals" meaning this is a  
           full and open competition.   
  
Answer    
         
          Correct, full and open competition. This procurement is not a Set-Aside. 
 
Questions  
              
          Technical questions with regard to this RFP. It says "All offerors are eligible to  
          submit proposals" and then provides a size standard. Does the size standard have  
          anything to do with eligibility?  Also, I see that L.9 reviews goals for  
          subcontracting. Does this mean that we have to subcontract to a small business  
          even though we are a small business? 
 
Answers 
          
          Correct, you are limit to 150 pages. Double-space pages. For readability and  
          control on verbosity. The firm size standard business is small or large. No, if      
          if you are a small business firm.   
 
Questions 
 
          How are these services currently being performed? Under contract? In-house? 
  
          If these requirements are currently being performed under a contract, 

 
    Who is the Contractor?  
    What is the contract number?  
    When does the contract expire?  
    What is the current contract value?  

  
Answer 
 
          This is the first procurement services type of the government. 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 Questions 
             
          What is the government’s estimated level of effort for the sample task order? 
 
          What is the period of performance for the overall Indefinite Quantity Contract?   
 
          Page 2 of the RFP indicates that the IQC contract type is a combination—containing: Firm    
          Fixed Price, Cost Plus Fixed Fee, and Time and Materials and Labor Hour contract clauses  
          and provisions. What type of contract should we assume for the sample task order?  
 
Answers 
 
         The government is unable to tell you the level of effort however, from the   
         requirements we hope you can determine the level of effort. The IQC contract  
         period of performance is three years.  Assume cost plus fixed fee to provide  
         comparability among the responses. 
 
Questions         
         
        1.This RFP is entitled “Evaluation of OUP Programs.” However, the introduction on   
        page 9, header I, and background II, indicate that research evaluations will be  
        conducted under this IDIQ under a broad range of HUD community development  
        programs. Is this IDIQ to evaluate HUD community development programs in  
        general or OUP programs in particular? 
 
        2. The capabilities requested under page 12, header (2) Management Work Plan are   
        very specific, i.e. econometric analysis, housing finance and economics, finance  
        theory, housing and market institutions, housing market analysis, mortgage default  
        and pre-payment estimation, etc. Are these skills required for this task?  
 
        3. The community development programs being evaluated as listed on page 9,  
        background II and the OUP programs described on page 16, undertake activities that  
        are much broader than this skill set as are the potential impacts on the  
        neighborhoods served (such as number of counseling units offered, number of jobs  
        created).  Are other types of research and evaluation capabilities desired or  
        requested? Can we focus the evaluation on social outcomes rather than economic  
        ones? 
 
       4. The introduction on page 9, header I indicates that “this IQC will give us the   
       opportunity to conduct at least one or two of these evaluations,” but page 16, header  
       II Purpose states that the goal is “to conduct…evaluation of the OUP grant programs  
       listed above.” Should the sample task address evaluation of one or two of the OUP  
       grant programs or all four programs as a single unit?  
 
      5. Will the awardee of this sample task, if any, be the sole contractor providing HUD  
      with evaluation services under this IDIQ? 
      
       6. Page 17 requests that the offeror suggest the type of evaluation project and any   
       tasks. Can the offeror also suggest a timeline appropriate to an in-depth  
       evaluation? 



    
      7. May grantees be evaluated using Internet-based surveys? We recognize this      
       methodology would still require OMB approval. 
  
      8. To develop an evaluation model that would assist HUD in addressing several of the   
      PART oriented questions requires the research model to go beyond evaluating the  
      grantees. Questions such as “Is the program designed to make a unique contribution           
      in addressing the interest, problem, or need?” or “Is the program optimally designed   
      to address the interest, problem, or need?” require that the evaluation team develop  
      information on the programs with which to compare the OUP programs.  
 
     9. On page 75, in L.8., resumes are listed as part of the page limits and as exempt from    
     the page limit. Which is correct?  
 
     10. Is the period of performance for the IQC 3 years/156 weeks? If the period of  
     performance is 3 years, why is the project report due in 1 year? 
 
Answers 
 
     1. The title was intended to be Community Development Indefinite Quantity Contract.     

  The contract will be for research on the HUD community development programs with    
  the evaluation of OUP programs as the first task order to be undertaken. 
 
  2. That specific listing is too limiting and is inconsistent with the broader objectives of     
  the IQC for community development programs.  A broad range of research skills and    
  capabilities will be required.   

 
     3. Evaluations in any given task order may consider either or both economic and  
     social outcomes, so a wider range of research and evaluation capabilities will be  
     needed. 
 
    4. The Department wishes to have all four programs evaluated under the first task   
    order.  
  
    5. Yes, the awardee would be the sole contractor selected for this IQC. 
 
    6. Yes. 

 
    7. That may be an appropriate choice in some circumstances, subject to requirements  
    of the specific task order and the overall research objectives. 
 
    8. No, the Department wants an impact evaluation of the OUP programs directly, not a  
    comparison to other programs. 
 
    9. Resumes are exempt from the page limit. 
 
    10. The first task order is expected to be completed within the first year.  Other task orders 
     may be initiated within the three-year period. 
 
 
 



Questions 
  
          1. Page 17 states that the database of grantees and outputs will be available for use   
          in the Task Order 1.  We understand that there is a separate RFP currently issued             
          for a contractor to populate this database.  Should we assume that the database   
          will be available for design and sampling purposes at the start of Task Order 1 or   
          develop an alternative approach to collecting this data? 
 
          2. For the sample Task Order 1, is it HUD’s intention that URAP HBCU grantees   
          be included in the evaluation of HBCU program?  
 
          3. Could HUD please provide further clarification and guidance on the use of the   
          Price Schedule in Section B which requests hours, rates, and totals for various  
          labor categories over 5 years. 
 
               a. Does this schedule apply to the overall IQC contract or to the sample task?   
               b. If the schedule applies to the overall IQC, what is the basis for any hours                  
                   estimate (since the level of effort will vary based on the number and type of  
                   task orders issued by HUD)? 
               c. Similarly, what basis would be used to price ODCs, travel, or subcontracts? 
               d. Can offerors add labor categories to be consistent with internal job   
                   categories? 
 
          4.  The cost proposal instructions on page 72 request “labor rates for identified      
          project managers and principal investigators who will be responsible for the   
          conduct of work under the contract.”   
 
              a. Does this refer to the IQC as a whole or to the sample task? 
              b. Are the rates requested the individual salary rates and associated loadings for   
                  these specific staff or is HUD asking for billing rates for general categories of  
                  staff? 
 
         5. What type of contract does HUD want for the sample task?  Should offerors price   
          this as CPFF, Time and Materials, or Fixed Price? 
 
         6. Could HUD explain the use of CLINs under this contract and how these will be   
          used to price task orders?  The RFP provides for separate CLINs for each labor            
          category.  This would be unusual for fixed price tasks where billing is typically by  
          milestone or task.  For T&M or CPFF task orders, the use of CLINs would make it   
          difficult to provide the government with the best price for a specific scope of work,   
          since the number of hours for each category would be capped under the contract   
          and there could be no ability to shift labor across categories to manage the work.   
 
          7. On page 70, Part 1 Item 2, offerors are asked to identify the individuals to be  
          assigned to the project including “the percentage of time each will devote to the    
          project.”  Does this refer to the sample task or the IQC as a whole?  If it refers to  
          the IQC as a whole, on what basis should this percentage be estimated given that  
          time commitments would depend on the number and type of task orders that HUD   
          ultimately issues? 
 
 



        8. On page 70 Part 1 Item 4 – are we correct in our understanding that the cost   
        proposal for the sample task should be included in the technical proposal (rather  
        than in the business proposal)? 
 
        9. On page 73, Part II Item 6, could HUD clarify what is meant by a “Team   
        Subcontract agreement.” 
 
        10. Page 70, Past Performance Item (b) notes that the offer should include reference  
        letters for all or at least 5 contracts completed in the last 5 years and all contracts in  
        process.  Can HUD clarify whether we are to include at least 5 contracts total or  
        more than that?  (We are currently working on many relevant contracts and are  
        concerned about the burden this places on our clients). 
 
        11. On page 73, Section L.8: in the first paragraph it says that resumes are included       
        in the page limits (150 pages for the overall IQC and 30 pages for the sample task  
        order) but at the bottom of the page it says that resumes are excluded.  Do resumes  
        count toward the page limits? 
 
       12. On page 74 HUD indicates that proposals will be evaluated based on   
       subcontracting opportunities for small businesses (up to 57% of the contract value).     
       If the subcontracting goals are for the IQC as a whole, what contract value should be  
       assumed?  If the reference is to the sample task, how would HUD evaluate this factor  
       if the task were less than $500,000 and did not require any subcontracting? 
 
Answers 
 
     1. Assume the availability of the database. 
      

2. URAP is a special case (one-time only) and need not be included in the HBCU  
         evaluation. 
 

3. Provide price schedule for the sample task order only.  Provide salary rates for 
those specifically assigned to the sample task and indicate billing rates for general 
categories of staff over the three years. 

 
4. Provide salary rates for those specifically assigned to the sample task and    

          indicate billing rates for general categories of staff over the three years. 
 
    5.   Price as Cost plus Fixed Fee (CPFF) to provide comparable numbers. 
 

6. CLINS are relevant only in that they provide billing rates for general  
          categories of labor over the three year period. 
 
    7.    Refers to sample task order only. 
 
    8.   Cost proposal for task order belongs in the business proposal. 
 
    9.   One or more subcontractors working together result as a Team Subcontractor..  
 



    10. In both cases, references are being asked for those contracts most relevant to  
    the current contract being proposed.  Certainly no more than 5 of the most  
    relevant of the proposer’s current contracts would be adequate. 
 
   11.  Resumes longer than one page will count toward the page limits.  Also charts   
    that extend and repeat the resumes will be counted toward the page limits.  (Note:    
    This is a deliberate revision of my earlier response to a similar question.)  One-page  
    resumes only. 
 
   12. Up to 57% of the total contract value. If you are a small business firm the  
   subcontractor plan does not apply. Whereas, a large business you must submit a  
   subcontract plan.   

 
 
 
 
 
 


